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Introduction

The Delaware Department of Transportation (DelDOT) is removing Bridge (Culvert)
Number 1-536 on Guyencourt Road, northwest of Brandywine Creek State Park, New
Castle County, Delaware (State Contract # 27-071-01). Removal of the culvert is due to
the realignment of the intersection of Route 100 with Guyencourt Road. The current
intersection is characterized with poor sight distances for turning movement. The culvert
is in poor and deteriorated condition. The intersection alignment will be shifted to the
northwest of the current alignment. A new culvert will be constructed as part of this
effort. The existing culvert of 1-536 and road area will be removed and the stream area
restored to more natural conditions. The project requires a U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers Nationwide Permit. As such, they are the lead federal agency and have
defined the “Permit Area” for Section 106 coordination to include the existing culvert
removal.

Bridge 536’s date of construction is unknown, although the size, materials and character
of the culvert are consistent with early 20" century construction methods. Although the
culvert meets the 50-year age criteria, it was not evaluated in Delaware’s Historic
Bridges, as it did not meet the established minimum 20ft. length criteria. DelDOT, on
behalf of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (CORPS)) is hereby evaluating Bridge 1-536
for the National Register of Historic places as part of this Section 106 undertaking.

The culvert replacement and road realignment project is adjacent to a dwelling and
detached garage structure constructed c. 1961. A pond situated north and just east of the
culvert appears to have been a landscaping feature associated with suburban development
c. 1961.

DelDOT cultural resource staff, recognized as meeting the Secretary of the Interior’s
Professional Qualification Standards in the fields of history and architectural history,
completed the following evaluation.

Summary

Based on a lack of integrity and significance, Bridge 536 is not eligible for listing on the
National Register of Historic Places.

Location: Guyencourt Road ( Road 231) at Route 100 (Road 232),
over a feeder of Wilson Run, a tributary to Brandywine
Creek in New Castle County, DE

Age: Circa 1920
Description: Concrete-slab culvert with flared, heavily parged, aggregate

wingwalls at west elevation. Altered galvanized pipe
railings and culvert bottom with concrete sandbagging.



Dimensions: Width: 15.00 ft. (roadway)
20.00 ft. (out to out)
Length: 8.00 ft.

Clearance:  4.00 ft. above waterway on average

Relevant Maps/

Contracts: A survey of the Baist Atlas (1893), 1937, 1954, and 1961
aerial photographs, as well as all relevant DelDOT contract
plans in the area.

History: No historic photographs of Bridge 536 could be located at
this time. It is unclear if Bridge 536 exists on 1937 aerial
photographs of the intersection. Preliminary research has
not uncovered as-built construction plans, although Bridge
536 was likely commissioned under the New Castle County
Levy Court.

Evaluation

Bridge 536 is evaluated for the National Register of Historic Places as a concrete-slab
culvert with heavily parged wingwalls. As explained in the Delaware Bridge Survey,
reinforced concrete-slab culverts were built initially in the first decade of the 20™ Century
and were often used for crossing minor or seasonal streams and were built for spans in
the range of 8 ft. to 15 ft. According to the Delaware Bridge Survey, in order for a
concrete-slab culvert to be eligible under Criterion C, it would need to be an early,
unaltered example, and historically associated with larger water control projects, such as
the reconstruction of millpond spillways and dams. A relatively early example of the
concrete-slab culvert type, it is speculated that Bridge 536 is a replacement for an earlier
timber crossing. The bridge is a common example and does not exhibit any outstanding
features or engineering accomplishments, nor does it have known associations with
milling or other historic activities. Furthermore, Bridge 536 suffers from loss of historic
integrity, exhibited by large cracks and spalls, exposed and corroded rebar, exposed
footings, and damaged and missing sections of the handrail. Responses to these problem
conditions have resulted in the alteration of historic materials through utilizing modern
methods and materials. For these reasons, Bridge 536 is not eligible under Criterion C.

Bridge 536 does not maintain associations with events that have made a significant
contribution to the broad patterns of our history. The bridge does not appear to directly
relate to a broader collection of bridges along Guyencourt or Montchanin Roads.
Improvements to Montchanin Road have resulted in several replacements of and
upgrades to historic bridges contemporary to Bridge 536. Due to the common design and
utilitarian function, it’s not likely that Bridge 536 is associated with an individual
significant to state, local or national history. No additional information or historical
revelations are likely to be gained from further investigation. As such Bridge 536 is not
significant under Criterion A, B and D.



Bridge 536 is located south of a 1.205 acre oblong-shaped property (Parcel ID#
0701300012). The property contains a two-and-a-half story, two-bay, side-gable dwelling
and detached one-and-a-half story, two-bay side-gable garage. A contemporary stone
wall is situated in front of the dwelling, directly adjacent to Guyencourt Road.
Preliminary research indicates the dwelling was constructed circa 1961. New Castle
County Land Use records indicate the house was built in 1962, however, aerial
photographs show a structure present in 1961. Aerial photographs indicate the garage
was constructed between 1992 and 1997. William E. and Mary M.R. Phelps purchased
the property on July 28, 1959 from the Wilmington and Northern Railroad and Reading
Railroad companies.

The Phelpses constructed the dwelling and lived on the property together through
William Phelps death on February 11, 1967. Mary Phelps resided in the house until
February 13, 1974, when she sold the property to Robert T. Zintl, Jr. and Leola H.B.
Zintl, his wife. In May of 1975 the Zintles sold the property to Robert P. and Elizabeth B.
Todd. The Todds held the property through November 1, 1983, when they sold to
Richard J. and Duane G. Abrams. On November 1, 1987 the property was sold to Steve
J. and Lisa R. Dell’Anno. The Dell’Annos are responsible for the construction of the
detached garage on the property. Elizabeth A. Dickinson purchased the property on
October 5, 1994 and continues to own it.

A small pond situated northwest of Bridge 536 is likely a feature associated with
residential development in the area. The pond does not appear on history aerial
photographs prior to 1961, precluding it from association with earlier historical activities.

Conclusion

Bridge 536 is recommended not eligible for the National Register of Historic Places, due
to lack of significance as a concrete-slab culvert. Bridge 536 is a common type, and
although it possesses integrity of location, setting, and association these qualities are not
expressed to a high degree. Alterations to the original design and materials of the culvert
include patches to the parging, replacement guard rails, and concrete sandbagging
reinforcements. Moreover, Bridge 536 does not retain the qualities of craftsmanship,
design, or feeling.



Photo 1 A through-shot of Bridge 536 from Montchanin Road looking down
Guyencourt Road




Photo 4 View beneath the culvert showing the concrete sandbagging reinforcement



Photo 6 View of dwelling, detached garage, and stone wall adjacent to Bridge 536,
view to southeast.





